
 
REGULAR MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 25, 2023 

12:00 P.M.  

228 TEXAS AVENUE, SUITE A, NEW BOSTON,  TX 75570 
 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 551, that the Board of 

Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District will conduct a meeting; open to the public, 

on WEDNESDAY, January 25, 2023, at 12:00 p.m., at the Riverbend Water Resources District 

(“Riverbend”) office, in the Conference Room located at 228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New 

Boston, TX 75570. 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 

attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts 

and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing 

security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters 

(Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session 

on any item on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be 

held and will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

 

II. INVOCATION & PLEDGE 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The Board of Directors allows individuals to speak to the Board. Prior to the meeting, 

speakers must sign in on the public comment sheet. The time limit is five (5) minutes 

per speaker. Subject to the provisions set forth under Section 551.007 of the 

Government Code. 

 

IV. SPECIAL AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION  

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of RESO 20230125-01 

accepting the recommendations of the Member Entities At Large, the City of 

Texarkana, Texas, and TexAmericas Center for Van Alexander, Sonja Hubbard, 

1



 

 

 

and Tina Veal Gooch, respectively, to serve an additional term as members of the 

Board of Directors of Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 

B. Oaths of office, administered by Judge Bobby Howell, for Directors Tina Veal 

Gooch and Van Alexander.  

 

V. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the November 16, 2022 

Regular Meeting Minutes and the December 7, 2022 Special Called Meeting 

minutes. 

 

VI. REGIONAL ENTITY REPORTS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with REDI. 

 

VII. AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 

The Board of Directors will consider, discuss, and if appropriate, take action on the 

following item(s): 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the fourth quarter financials for FY 2022. 

 

Presentation of the fourth quarter financials for FY 2022 will be by Tara Houck.   

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230125-02 approving the 

fourth quarter financials for FY 2022. 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the fourth quarter investment report for FY 2022. 

 

Presentation of the fourth quarter investment report for FY 2022 will be by Tara 

Houck.   

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230125-03 approving the 

fourth quarter investment report for FY 2022. 

2



 

 

 

 

Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the FY 2022 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C. 

 

Presentation of the FY 2022 Annual Audit will be by Carolyn Wilder with Wilf and 

Henderson, P.C. 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230125-04 approving the 

FY 2022 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C. 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

a memorandum of understanding to the agreement with TexAmericas 

Center for current and future water supply.  

 

This item pertains to the intake application for the Regional Water System project.  

As part of the discussion with the Corps and for RWRD to be able to move the 

intake application forward, separate from the Ultimate Rule Curve (URC) studies, 

we must stay within the water volumes made available through the Interim Rule 

Curve (IRC).  This is the only path forward for the water treatment plant project 

now without waiting on the URC to be implemented.  Our agreement with TAC to 

provide raw water centered around an assumption that the URC would be 

implemented prior to the opening of the plant.  The Corps process to implement the 

URC has proven to be a much lengthier timeframe than anyone anticipated at the 

time of the agreement.  This MOU seeks to define the availability of raw water to 

TAC both under the IRC and the URC since there is uncertainty as to when the 

URC will be implemented when compared with the estimated opening date of the 

new water treatment plant.  Staff recommends approval. 

 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20230125-05 approving a 

memorandum of understanding to the agreement with TexAmericas Center for 

current and future water supply. 

 

D. Discussion regarding fluoride and drinking water. 

 

This item pertains to a follow up for Board discussion on the October 2022 

presentation made by Dr. Shambarger and Dr. Burks regarding fluoride and 

drinking water.   

 

No Action Required. 

 

 

 

 

3



 

 

 

VIII. REPORTS 

 

A. Board Members 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in 

closed or executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving 

legal advice from its attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters 

(Section 551.072); discussing gifts and donations (Section 551.073); discussing 

personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing security personnel or devices (Section 

551.076); or discussing economic development matters (Section 551.087). If the Board 

of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session on any item on this 

agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be held and 

will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

X. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, February 22, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Kyle Dooley 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

 
*Persons with disabilities who plan to attend the RWRD Board of Directors’ meeting and who may need 

auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the RWRD Administrative Offices at (903) 831-0091, as soon 

as possible. All reasonable efforts will be taken to make the appropriate arrangements. 

4



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 25, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL AGENDA ITEM IV. A. 

RWRD RESO 20230125-01 

Board of Director Appointments  

& Oaths of Office 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



 
RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230125-01 

 

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the terms of Van Alexander, Sonja Hubbard, and Tina Veal Gooch 

terminated on December 31, 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, The At-Large Member Entities consisting of the Cities of Annona, Atlanta, 

Avery, De Kalb, Hooks, Leary, Maud, Nash, Redwater, and Wake Village; Bowie, Cass, and Red 

River Counties; Central Bowie WSC, and Oak Grove WSC; the City of Texarkana, Texas as well 

as TexAmericas Center have approved Mr. Alexander, Mrs. Hubbard, and Mrs. Veal Gooch 

respectively to serve an additional term on the Board of Directors of Riverbend Water Resources 

District; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District hereby accepts the recommendations of the Member Entities At Large, 

The City of Texarkana, Texas, and TexAmericas Center. The elected offices will remain as 

follows: 

 

Van Alexander, President; Steve Mayo, Vice President; Fred Milton, Treasurer; Sonja Hubbard, 

Secretary; and Tina Veal-Gooch, Past President.  

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of January 2023 
 

  

       __________________________________  

       Van Alexander, President 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

_________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

6



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 25, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM V. A. 

November 16, 2022  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 7, 2022  

Special Called Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



 

  

Regular Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

November 16, 2022 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of   

 Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Van Alexander, President of the 

Board, called the meeting to order at 12:02 p.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Van Alexander, President  

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary  

Fred Milton, Treasurer  

 

Directors Absent:  

Steve Mayo, Vice President 

Tina Veal Gooch, Past President 
 

Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

Tara Houck, CFO 

Becky Melton, HR Manager/Executive Assistant 

          

Public Present: 

 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Van Alexander led the invocation and the pledge of allegiance. 

 

III. Public Comments 

  

 None. 

 

IV. Consent Agenda Items 

 

Item IV. A. was considered under a Consent Agenda for one single motion of approval. 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding October 26, 2022 Regular Called Meeting 

Minutes. 

8



 

  

 

A single motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Sonja Hubbard to approve the 

Consent Agenda Item as listed above. The motion passed unanimously. 

V. Regional Entity Reports 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin Authority 

(SRBA). 

 

No report.  No action taken. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center (TAC). 

 

Scott Norton, Executive Director/CEO provided that the TAC Board unanimously reappointed 

Tina Veal Gooch as their representative on the Riverbend Board. The board also approved a 

new subdivision platting policy and then file those with the county. An arcitecture firm has 

been hired to design the new Downtown Center in Hooks, Texas. This will include new office 

space for TAC employees. Two tenants extended leases last month. They are working on 

getting everything complete on the spec building. They’re hoping to have a sale finalized by 

December. There are negotiations ongoing with a current tenant to expand into more buildings 

soon. There is also a plastics recycling company that is interested in coming ot the area. 

Prospect activity is picking back up after a typical slowdown near election time.  

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI. 

 

Sonja Hubbard provided that they had their quarterly meeting earlier this week. There are 

discussions with a company that paints airplanes that is looking to move to the area. One of 

the auto manufacturer put our site in the top three of their choices for a new plant but 

unfortunately, they chose a different site. There is another company currently working with 

the Army Corps of Engineers to be out of the floodplain. The board is looking for a company 

to safely burn the trees on the Texas side property. 

 

VI. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to execute an amendment to the funding contract with the Texas 

Water Development Board for the 6th Cycle of Regional Planning on behalf of North East 

Texas Regional Water Planning Group. 

 

Kyle Dooley, provided that this contract change executing Amendment No. 1 to the contract 

between TWDB and RWRD for the development of the 2026 Regional Water Plan for Region 

D. This contract was originally executed on July 13, 2021.  This will be the first of a few 

amendments as we go through the planning cycle and TWDB makes funding available.  This 

amendment would take the total committed funds from $205,691 up to $606,747.  It also 

amends several exhibits in the contract as they pertain to scope of work, task and expense 

budgets, and general guidelines for the 2026 Regional Water Plan deliverables. TWDB has 

9



 

  

executed this amendment.  We are required to seek approval and submit an executed copy to 

TWDB before the end of the year.  Staff recommends approval. 

 

A motion was made by Sonja Hubbard and seconded by Fred Milton to approve RESO 

20221116-01 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to execute an amendment to the funding 

contract with the Texas Water Development Board for the 6th Cycle of Regional Planning on 

behalf of North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to enter into a service agreement for water and wastewater 

services with the City of Annona. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that, in August, staff brought a service agreement forward for 

consideration with the City of Maud to provide wastewater services and the hope was that this 

service agreement could be used in the future as a template for other members who might like 

RWRD to provide water/wastewater services for them in the future.  Since then, staff has been 

working on finalizing a water/wastewater services agreement with the City of Annona using 

the service agreement from Maud as the template.  We have met with Annona to go over the 

proposed services to be provided and discuss the possible costs for this agreement.  The draft 

agreement is attached in the packet and with board approval, we would work with Annona to 

finalize the agreement in the near future.   The agreement has an initial five-year term, with 

renewable options going forward after the initial term.  The annual amount of the agreement 

is for $38,480 ($740/week) and the contract provides for a “true-up” every year after the initial 

year.   

 

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Sonja Hubbard to approve RESO 

20221116-02 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to enter into a service agreement for 

water and wastewater services with the City of Annona. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving changes to 

the Personnel Policy Manual. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that Section 8-13 of the Personnel Policy Manual discusses Conflict of 

Interest and Business Ethics.  In a bullet list in that section, it discusses possible conflict of 

interests while being employed by RWRD.  This agenda item pertains to the board considering 

updating the wording of one of the bullets to more clearly state allowable service opportunities 

for RWRD employees.   

 

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Sonja Hubbard to approve RESO 

20221116-03 approving RESO 20221116-03 changes to the Personnel Policy Manual. The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

VII.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports.  

 

 

10



 

  

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

Kyle Dooley provided the following updates: 

 

Regional Water System Project: Pape-Dawson has shared the application letter that they have 

put together for the intake permitting with the USACE. Comments on what that letter needs to 

say are being prepared. The meeting to put the final touches on the letter will be tomorrow 

afternoon. The goal is Corps concurrence and RFQ timelines planned out to get approval from 

TWDB so that design funds can be released.  

 

TCEQ & Water Rights Application: Lines of communication are still open between the District 

and those requesting a contested case hearing. Other than that, no new update.   

Ultimate Rule Curve and Environmental & Cultural Resources Study: Still working with the 

USACE. We are moving towards having draft programmatic agreement and environmental 

documents ready from the Corps. On the most recent call with the USACE that the historic 

operational curve, which is much higher, is what will be used as a baseline for the elevations 

that are being studied instead of the Interim Rule Curve. At its highest, the historic operational 

curve is a better representation of how the lake will function. The USACE will come back to 

Riverbend with more accurate amounts on the contributed funds agreement based on the 

necessary studies. Initially the cost estimates were close to $2.3 million and the new estimates 

look like they will be closer to $4.4 million. 

Industrial Waste Water Plant: The amortization schedules previously requested by the Army 

have been sent over to them for review. We are waiting on a meeting date.  

 

Typically, this is our last meeting of the calendar year. We may need to have a quick December 

meeting to cover a couple of items that don’t need any action, but they do need to be discussed. 

The board decided that December 7th at noon will work for them. 

 

No action taken.  

 

VIII.  Executive Session 

The board stood at ease at 12:28 p.m. 

 

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 12:30 p.m. with quorum pursuant to section 

551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 

The board came out of Executive Session at 1:30 p.m.  

 

The board reconvened with quorum at 1:31 p.m.  

 

IX. Next Riverbend Meetings 

Riverbend Special Called Meeting, Wednesday, December 7, 2022 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend 

Offices, 228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 25, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

11



 

  

X.  Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by 

Sonja Hubbard to adjourn the meeting at 1:35 p.m. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

The minutes of the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, held on 

November 16, 2022, were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Van Alexander, President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

12



 

 

  

Regular Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

December 7, 2022 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of   

 Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, on December 7, 2021, the Chair, 

Steve Mayo, Vice President of the Board, called the meeting to order at 12:06 p.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Steve Mayo, Vice President  

Fred Milton, Treasurer 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

Tina Veal-Gooch, , Past President 

 

Directors Absent: 

Van Alexander, President,  
 

 Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Tara Houck, Chief Financial Officer 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

        Becky Melton, Executive Assistant/HR Manager 

 

Public Present: 

 

See attached list. 

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Fred Milton led the invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

III.  Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion regarding draft fourth quarter financials for FY 2022. 

 

Tara Houck, CFO presented the draft fourth quarter financials. 

 

No action taken. 

 

 

 

 

13



 

 

  

B. Discussion regarding the draft fourth quarter investment report for FY 2022. 

Tara Houck, CFO presented the draft fourth quarter investment report. 

 

No action taken. 

 

IV.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports. 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

No report.  

 

V. Executive Session  

  

The board stood at ease at 12:29 p.m. 

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 12:30 p.m. with quorum pursuant to 

sections 551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 

The board came out of Executive Session at 12:48 p.m.  

 

The board reconvened with quorum at 12:49 p.m.  

 

VI. Next Riverbend Meetings & Activities:  

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 25, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend 

Offices. 

 

VI. Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Fred Milton and 

seconded by Sonja Hubbard to adjourn the meeting at 12:50 p.m.  

 

The minutes of Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, December 

8, 2021 were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 2023. 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Van Alexander, President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

14



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 25, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VII. A. 

RWRD RESO 20230125-02 

FY 2022 Fourth Quarter Financials 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230125-02 

 

APPROVING THE FOURTH QUARTER FY 2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District staff prepares and presents quarterly 

financial statements, which provide for the fiduciary guidance of Riverbend Water Resources 

funds. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

Board of Directors accepts and approves the Fourth Quarter FY 2022 financials. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of January 2023 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

Attached: Fourth Quarter FY 2022 Financials 

16



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

September 30, 2022

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Current assets: 

     Cash 170,172$               -$                           1,699,578$          1,869,750$        

     Accounts receivable 18,601 290,201 842,159 1,150,961

     Interest receivable 257,961 257,961

     Due from other fund 19,539 - 5,089 24,628

     Restricted assets:

          Cash restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,695,273 1,129,680 5,824,953

          Cash restricted for construction - bond proceeds - 17,166,672 17,166,672

          Investments restricted for construction 75,210,994 20,059 75,231,053

          Cash restricted for operations - - 902,696 902,696

Prepaid expenses - - 132,181 132,181

Inventory - - 83,326 83,326

          Total current assets 208,312 97,621,101 4,814,768 102,644,181

Noncurrent assets:

     Cash and cash equivalents - restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,255,502 1,656,774 5,912,276

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

     Equipment - - 409,911 409,911

     Utility system - - 15,958,381 15,958,381

     Intangible assets - - 255,077 255,077

     Construction in progress - 15,454,904 27,335 15,482,239

     Total capital assets - 15,454,904 16,650,704 32,105,608

          Total noncurrent assets - 19,710,406 18,307,478 38,017,884

TOTAL ASSETS 208,312 117,331,507 23,122,246 140,662,065

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

     Accounts payable 68,803 153,671 113,534 336,008

     Payroll liabilities - - 51,854 51,854

     Due to other fund 5,089 19,539 - 24,628

     Due to Region D Planning 13,003 - - 13,003

     Accrued interest payable - 894,237 137,725 1,031,962

     Accrued compensated absences - current - - 21,553 21,553

     Revenue bonds payable - current - 2,955,000 815,000 3,770,000

          Total current liabilities 86,895 4,022,447 1,139,666 5,249,008

Noncurrent liabilities:

     Accrued compensated absences - long term - - 59,762 59,762

     Revenue bonds payable - long term - 108,045,000 7,005,000 115,050,000

          Total noncurrent liabilities - 108,045,000 7,064,762 115,109,762

TOTAL LIABILITES 86,895 112,067,447 8,204,428 120,358,770

NET POSITION

     Net investment in capital assets - (3,342,830) 9,838,585 6,495,755

     Restricted for bond reserves - 8,604,701 2,789,165 11,393,866

     Restricted for construction - 616,917 20,058 636,975

     Unrestricted 121,417 (614,728) 2,270,010 1,776,699
TOTAL NET POSITION 121,417$              5,264,060$           14,917,818$       20,303,295$     

17



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022
Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Member fees 202,945$               -$                           -$                 202,945$      

          Army volumetric charge - 3,246,554 3,246,554

          Army water supply charge - 245,363 245,363

          Commercial & residential charge - 151,966 151,966
     Other revenue - - 2,275 2,275

          Total operating revenues 202,945 -$                           3,646,158 3,849,103

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 - - 4,500

     Analyticals - - 100,504 100,504

     Community relations 1,553 - - 1,553

     Conferences & seminars 3,811 - - 3,811

     Consulting 184,769 - 31,002 215,771

     Dues & memberships 8,372 - - 8,372

     Engineering services 47,045 - - 47,045

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel - - 50,233 50,233

     Equipment rental - - 2,281 2,281

     Insurance - - 49,277 49,277

     Legal & professional fees 14,300 - - 14,300

     Materials - - 189,183 189,183

     Meetings expense 4,744 - - 4,744

     Military affairs 2,750 - 2,750

     Miscellaneous 766 - - 766

     Permits - - 32,399 32,399

     Repairs - - 207,063 207,063

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 173,623 - 925,715 1,099,338

     Supplies & materials - 26,712 26,712

     Travel & training 9,159 - 9,159

     Utilities - - 160,577 160,577

     Waste disposal - - 44,748 44,748

     Water purchase cost - - 385,321 385,321

     Web design & maintenance 5,570 - - 5,570

     Miscellaneous - - -

     Overhead allocation - water - - 187,709 187,709

     Overhead allocation - wastewater - - 203,894 203,894

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater - - 205,626 205,626

          Total operating expenses 460,962 - 2,802,245 3,263,207

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (258,017) - 843,913 585,896

     Depreciation - - 833,250 833,250

Operating income (loss) (258,017) - 10,663 (247,354)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenue - - 1,443,486 1,443,486

     Minimum monthly payments 4,488,277 4,488,277

     Interest revenue 133 652,742 20,338 673,213

     Project admin fees - - 30,083 30,083

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset - - 11,326 11,326

     Unrealized gain (loss) on investment (1,298,496) (1,298,496)

     Interest expense - (1,027,817) (317,672) (1,345,489)

     Bond issuance costs (2,355,901) (65,000) (2,420,901)

     Franchise fees expense - - (109,350) (109,350)

     Special projects expense (50,005) - - (50,005)

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (49,872) 458,805 1,013,211 1,422,144

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers (307,889) 458,805 1,023,874 1,174,790

Transfers in (out) 230,000 583,961 (813,961) -

Changes in net position (77,889) 1,042,766 209,913 1,174,790

Net position, beginning of year 199,306 4,221,294 14,707,905 19,128,505

Net position, end of year 121,417$               5,264,060$            14,917,818$ 20,303,295$ 

18



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 205,021$       202,945$       (2,076)$          98.99%

     Total operating revenues 205,021 202,945 (2,076) 98.99%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Advertising 1,400 - 1,400 0.00%

     Accounting & audit 2,500 4,500 (2,000) 180.00%

     Community relations 8,000 1,553 6,447 19.41%

     Conferences & seminars 4,700 3,811 889 81.09%

     Consulting 200,000 184,769 15,231 92.38%

     Dues & memberships 8,735 8,372 363 95.84%

     Engineering services 80,000 47,045 32,955 58.81%

     Legal & professional fees 27,500 14,300 13,200 52.00%

     Meetings expense 6,000 4,744 1,256 79.07%

     Military affairs 11,000 2,750 8,250 25.00%

     Office supplies & expense 2,300 766 1,534 33.30%

     Salaries, wages & benefits 183,200 173,623 9,577 94.77%

     Subscriptions 650 - 650 0.00%

     Travel & training 18,000 9,159 8,841 50.88%

     Web design & maintenance 6,000 5,570 430 92.83%

          Total operating expenses 559,985 460,962 99,023 82.32%

Operating income (loss) (354,964) (258,017) (96,947) 72.69%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Interest Revenue - 133 133

     Special projects expense (50,000) (50,005) (5) 100.01%

     Use of prior year equity 174,964 - (174,964) 0.00%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 124,964 (49,872) (174,836) 39.91%

Income (loss) before transfers (230,000) (307,889) (77,889) 133.86%

Transfer in 230,000 230,000 - 100.00%

Change in net position - (77,889) (77,889)

Net position, beginning of year 199,306 199,306 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 199,306$      121,417$      (77,889) 60.92%

19



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services -$               -$               -$               

     Total operating revenues - - -

OPERATING EXPENSES

      Expenses - - -

          Total operating expenses - - -

Operating income (loss) - - -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Minimum monthly payments 4,296,050 4,488,277 192,227 104.47%

     Interest Revenue 763,100 652,742 (110,358) 85.54%

     Interest Expense (1,027,818) (1,027,817) 1 100.00%

     Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments (538,532) (1,298,496) (759,964) 241.12%

     Bond Issuance Costs (2,353,000) (2,355,901) (2,901) 100.12%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,139,800 458,805 (680,995) 40.25%

Change in net position before transfers 1,139,800 458,805 (680,995) 40.25%

Transfer In 583,961 583,961 - 100.00%

Net position, beginning of year 4,221,294$    4,221,294 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 5,945,055$   5,264,060$   (680,995)$    88.55%

20



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 3,763,387$            3,643,883$       (119,504)$     96.82%

     Other revenue - 2,275 2,275

     Total operating revenues 3,763,387 3,646,158 (117,229) 0.00%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Analytical 145,000 100,504 44,496 69.31%

     Capital Replacement 286,350 286,350 0.00%

     Consulting 35,000 31,002 3,998 88.58%

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 50,897 50,233 664 98.70%

     Equipment rental 10,000 2,281 7,719 22.81%

     Insurance 51,900 49,277 2,623 94.95%

     Materials 233,000 189,183 43,817 81.19%

     Permits 55,000 32,399 22,601 58.91%

     Repairs 322,561 207,063 115,498 64.19%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 1,077,540 925,715 151,825 85.91%

     Supplies & materials 32,098 26,712 5,386 83.22%

     Utilities 182,075 160,577 21,498 88.19%

     Waste disposal 60,375 44,748 15,627 74.12%

     Water purchase cost 389,337 385,321 4,016 98.97%

     Overhead allocation - water 201,017 187,709 13,308 93.38%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 218,350 203,894 14,456 93.38%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 220,205 205,626 14,578 93.38%

          Total operating expenses 3,570,705 2,802,245 768,460 78.48%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 192,682 843,913 651,231 437.98%

Depreciation 824,500 833,250 (8,750) 101.06%

Operating income (loss) (631,818) 10,663 642,481 1.69%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenues 1,513,088 1,443,486 (69,602) 95.40%

     Interest revenue 20,400 20,338 (62) 99.70%

     Project Admin Fees 38,750 30,083 (8,667) 77.63%

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset 9,246 11,326 2,080 122.50%

     Use of prior year equity 361,142 - (361,142) 0.00%

     Bond issuance costs (65,000) (65,000) - 100.00%

     Interest expense (317,700) (317,672) 28 99.99%

     Franchise fees expense (114,147) (109,350) 4,797 95.80%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,445,779 1,013,211 (432,568) 70.08%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 813,961 1,023,874 209,913 125.79%

Transfers in (out) (813,961) (813,961) - 100.00%

Change in net position - 209,913 209,913

Net position, beginning of year 14,707,905 14,707,905 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 14,707,905$         14,917,818$    209,913$      101.43%

21



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

September 30, 2022 September 30, 2021 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Member fees 202,945$                     204,635$                       (1,690)$                  -0.83%

          Total operating revenues 202,945 204,635 (1,690) -0.83%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 4,500 - 0.00%

     Community relations 1,553 5,003 (3,450) -68.96%

     Conferences & seminars 3,811 2,840 971 34.19%

     Consulting 184,769 180,596 4,173 2.31%

     Dues & memberships 8,372 8,357 15 0.18%

     Engineering services 47,045 20,697 26,348 127.30%

     Legal & professional fees 14,300 12,665 1,635 12.91%

     Meetings expense 4,744 4,279 465 10.87%

     Military affairs 2,750 11,000 (8,250) -75.00%

     Office supplies and expense 766 1,136 (370) -32.57%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 173,623 154,662 18,961 12.26%

     Travel & training 9,159 5,001 4,158 83.14%

     Web design & maintenance 5,570 2,667 2,903 108.85%

     Miscellaneous - 309 (309) -100.00%

          Total operating expenses 460,962 413,712 47,250 11.42%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (258,017) (209,077) (48,940) -23.41%

     Depreciation - - -

Operating income (loss) (258,017) (209,077) (48,940) 23.41%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Interestrevenue 133 2 131

     Special projects expense (50,005) (6,858) (43,147) -629.15%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (49,872) (6,856) (43,016) -627.42%

Income (loss) before transfers (307,889) (215,933) (91,956) -42.59%

Transfers in (out) 230,000 230,000 - 0.00%

Change in net position (77,889) 14,067 (91,956) 653.70%

Net position, beginning of year 199,306 185,239 14,067 7.59%

Net position, end of year 121,417$                     199,306$                       (77,889)$                -39.08%

22



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

September 30, 2022 September 30, 2021 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services: - - -

          Total operating revenues - - -
-

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Expenses - - -

          Total operating expenses - - --

Operating income (loss) - - --

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Minimum monthly payments 4,488,277 4,570,950 (82,673) -1.81%

     Interest Revenue 652,742 23,851 628,891 2636.75%

     Unrealized gain (loss) on investment (1,298,496) - (1,298,496)

     Interest Expense (1,027,817) (210,304) (817,513) 388.73%

     Bond Issuance Costs (2,355,901) (628,526) (1,727,375) 274.83%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 458,805 3,755,971 (3,297,166) -87.78%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 458,805 3,755,971 (3,297,166) -87.78%

Transfers in (out) 583,961 - 583,961

Net position, beginning of year 4,221,294 465,323 3,755,971 807.18%

Net position, end of year 5,264,060$                  4,221,294$                   1,042,766$            24.70%

23



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

September 30, 2022 September 30, 2021 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Army volumetric charge 3,246,554$                 3,141,686$                   104,868$               3.34%

          Army water supply charge 245,363 249,672 (4,309) -1.73%

          Commercial & residential charge 151,966 232,311 (80,345) -34.59%
     Other revenue 2,275 402 1,873 465.92%

          Total operating revenues 3,646,158 3,624,071 22,087 0.61%
-

OPERATING EXPENSES -

     Analyticals 100,504 101,755 (1,251) -1.23%

     Consulting 31,002 23,941 7,061 29.49%

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 50,233 39,325 10,908 27.74%

     Equipment rental 2,281 (1,079) 3,360 311.40%

     Insurance 49,277 46,891 2,386 5.09%

     Materials 189,183 185,047 4,136 2.24%

     Permits 32,399 34,279 (1,880) -5.48%

     Repairs 207,063 170,150 36,913 21.69%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 925,715 896,376 29,339 3.27%

     Supplies & materials 26,712 25,365 1,347 5.31%

     Utilities 160,577 145,291 15,286 10.52%

     Waste disposal 44,748 37,158 7,590 20.43%

     Water purchase cost 385,321 272,185 113,136 41.57%

     Overhead allocation - water 187,709 163,286 24,423 14.96%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 203,894 177,365 26,529 14.96%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 205,626 178,872 26,754 14.96%

          Total operating expenses 2,802,245 2,496,208 306,037 12.26%-

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 843,913 1,127,863 (283,950) -25.18%

     Depreciation 833,250 805,179 28,071 3.49%

Operating income (loss) 10,663 322,684 (312,021) -96.70%-

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Facility charges revenue 1,443,486 1,502,606 (59,120) -3.93%

     Interest revenue 20,338 12,650 7,688 60.77%

     Project admin fees 30,083 17,147 12,936 -75.44%

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset 11,326 (62,676) 74,002 -118.07%

     Interest expense (317,672) (362,717) 45,045 12.42%

     Bond issuance costs (65,000) - (65,000)

     Franchise fees expense (109,350) (108,710) (640) -0.59%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,013,211 998,300 14,911 1.49%

Income (loss) before transfers 1,023,874 1,320,984 (297,110) -22.49%

Transfers in (out) (813,961) (230,000) (583,961) -253.90%

Change in net position 209,913 1,090,984 (881,071) -80.76%

Net position, beginning of year 14,707,905 13,520,497 1,187,408 8.78%

Net position, end of year 14,917,818$               14,611,481$                 306,337$               2.10%

24



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 25, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VII. B. 

RWRD RESO 20230125-03 

FY 2022 Fourth Quarter  

Investment Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230125-03 

 

APPROVING THE FOURTH QUARTER FY 2022 INVESTMENT REPORT   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has adopted an Investment Policy as 

required by law to manage the funds of Riverbend Water Resources District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Investment Policy Reporting Section XIII requires that the Investment 

Officer prepare and sign a quarterly investment report that includes activity on all interest-bearing 

accounts held by Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

accepts and approves the Fourth Quarter FY 2022 Investment Report. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of January 2023 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Van Alexander, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

Attached: Fourth Quarter FY 2022 Investment Report 

26



27



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 25, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VII. C. 

RWRD RESO 20230125-04 

FY 2022 Annual Audit 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



 
RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230125-04 

 

APPROVING THE FY 2022 ANNUAL AUDIT PERFORMED BY  

WILF & HENDERSON, P.C. 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 

created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors deems it necessary to 

engage a qualified Certified Public Accounting firm to conduct an annual audit, wich provides for 

increased fiduciary responsibility of Riverbend Water Resources District funds; and 

 

WHEREAS, Wilf & Henderson, P.C. provides the necessary accounting and financial 

services to fully perform an annual audit; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District staff and Wilf & Henderson, P.C. staff 

collaborated to conduct the audit and represent the financial statements, management discussion 

and analysis, and management representations in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

approves the FY 2022 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C. for distribution. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of January 2023 

 

 

     ___________________________________ 

     Van Alexander, President 

 

ATTEST:  
 

 

______________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

 

 

Attached: FY 2022 Annual Audit for Riverbend Water Resources District 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 25, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VII. D. 

RWRD RESO 20230125-05 

Memo of Understanding -  

TAC Raw Water Contract  

 

 

 

 

 

 

126



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20230125-05 

 

AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

TO THE AGREEMENT WITH TEXAMERICAS CENTER FOR  

CURRENT AND FUTURE WATER SUPPLY 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, TexAmericas Center is a political subdivision of the State of Texas with the 

powers and authorities specified in Chapter 3503 of the Special District Local Laws Code of the 

State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, TexAmericas Center and Riverbend entered into an Agreement for Purchase 

and Sale of Assets on May 26, 2015 detailing the transfer of the wet utilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agreement was amended on October 24, 2017 setting forth a time frame 

for the future delivery of industrial raw water to meet the needs of TexAmericas Center and/or 

future TexAmericas tenants/grantees and assigns. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District hereby authorizes the Executive Director/CEO to execute a 

memorandum of understanding to the Purchase and Sale of Assets Agreement with TexAmericas 

Center dated May 26, 2015 and further amended on October 24, 2017.  

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of January 2023 
 

  

       __________________________________  

       Van Alexander, President 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

_________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary 

 

 

 

Attached: MOU to the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Assets and Assignment  

and Assumption of Contract Rights 

127



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  PAGE 1 OF 3 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
 

Riverbend Water Resources District  
and the  

TexAmericas Center 
 
Article I. Background and Purpose  
 
Riverbend Water Resources District (“Riverbend”) is a political subdivision of the state 
created to perform works and projects in the service area as defined by creating documents 
that benefit all lands and other property, included but not limited to, within the boundaries 
of Riverbend.  The accomplishment of the purposes stated for the creation of Riverbend is 
for the benefit of its customers, members, the people of Texas, the improvement of their 
property and industries through the goal of fostering and encouraging economic 
development in the region. 
 
TexAmericas Center, (“TAC”) is a governmental agency and political subdivision of the state 
of Texas, existing pursuant to and having the power set forth in Chapter 3503 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas. 
 
Article II. Scope 
 
On or about May 26, 2015, Riverbend and TAC entered into an Agreement for Purchase 
and Sale of Assets and Assignment and Assumption of Contract Rights, hereinafter 
(“Agreement.”)  Thereafter, on or about January 24, 2018, the Parties entered into a First 
Supplement and Amendment to the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Assets and 
Assignment and Assumption of Contract Rights, hereinafter (“Amendment.”)   
 
In the Amendment, a “Timeframe for delivery of raw water capability” was set forth.  [See 
Amendment at XXIII (23.12).]  Additionally, said section sets forth expectations as to 
Riverbend’s delivery of raw, non-potable water to the TAC footprint following its design and 
construction of the facilities and infrastructure set forth in the Agreement and Amendment. 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding, (“MOU”), outlines the agreements, responsibilities 
and expectations of the Parties hereto, as to the aforementioned section of the Amendment. 
 
Article III. Agreements/Responsibilities/Expectations 
 
Regarding the obligations imposed under the second full paragraph of XXIII (23.12) of the 
Amendment, the Parties agree any such obligations and expectations imposed on Riverbend 
prior to the implementation of the Ultimate Rule Curve (URC) are not feasible and 
incapable of being fully performed.  Therefore, the Parties agree the responsibilities and 

128



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  PAGE 2 OF 3 

 

expectations imposed on Riverbend under said section should be revised to the following 
extent, but not otherwise, to wit: 
 
The Parties agree that Riverbend shall design and construct facilities and infrastructure as 
set forth in the Amendment sufficient to deliver to the TAC footprint and any tenants 
thereon between ten million (10,000,000) and twenty-six million (26,000,000) gallons per 
day of raw, non-potable water upon commencement of operations at its facilities and 
infrastructure.  While Riverbend is operating under the Interim Rule Curve (IRC) prior to 
the implementation of the URC, it will exercise reasonable efforts to devote the balance of 
the water available to TAC after satisfying regional water needs and the water requirements 
under its agreement with Graphic Packaging International (GPI).  The balance of the raw 
water available to provide to TAC under the IRC should range from ten million (10,000,000) 
and twenty-six million (26,000,000) gallons per day.   
 
Upon completion of its facilities and infrastructure and upon implementation of the URC, 
Riverbend will deliver to the TAC footprint and any tenants thereon at least thirty million 
(30,000,000) gallons per day of raw, non-potable water.  Further, following implementation 
of the URC Riverbend will reserve capacity in its facilities and infrastructure and/or in the 
first system expansion thereafter to deliver an additional sixty million (60,000,000) gallons 
per day of raw, non-potable water to the TAC footprint and any tenants thereon.   
 
This MOU permits, but does not obligate, the Parties to enter into any further agreements, 
contracts, or other obligations relative to the subject matter set forth herein.  Nothing in this 
MOU shall be interpreted or construed as limiting or restricting in any way the rights or 
privileges of the Parties relative to the subject matter herein.  All existing and future 
understandings between the Parties will be in writing and signed by their lawful 
representatives. 
 
Article IV.  Implementation/Modification 
 
Implementation of this MOU shall be through the mutual consent and approval of official 
representatives of both Parties as identified below to enter into and adopt this Memorandum 
of Understanding.  Modifications of this agreement shall be upon mutual written consent 
of both Parties and may be made at any time. 
 
Effective date:  This MOU shall take effect upon the date of the last signature. 
 
Termination:  The termination of this MOU shall not affect the validity or duration of 
activities or agreements under this MOU that are initiated prior to such termination 
pursuant to separate written agreements. 
 

129



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  PAGE 3 OF 3 

 

The Authorized Representatives to enter into this MOU are identified by Riverbend Water 
Resources District and TexAmericas Center Policies as outlined below in accordance with 
statutes that govern the operation of each Party. 
 
Article V.  Approval 
 
Riverbend Water Resources District  TexAmericas Center 
 
 
 
By:  ___________________________         By:  _____________________________ 
 
Printed Name: __________________ Printed Name: ____________________ 
 
Title: __________________________ Title: ___________________________ 
 
Date: __________________________         Date:  ____________________________ 
 
 
      

130




